
 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  1  
 

Oregon Workforce Investment Board Minutes 

Salem,  

September 20, 2013 

Attendees: 

Members:  Agnes Balassa, Alan Unger, Barbara Byrd, Barbara Rodriguez,  Claire Spanbock, Jessica 

Gomez, Ken Madden, Laura McKinney, Lisa Nisenfeld, Lori Luchak, Maureen Fallt, Megan Helzerman, 

Rep. John Huffman, Rep. Michael Dembrow,  Rosie Pryor 

Guests:  Rachel Post, Jessica Chanay, Alison McIntosh, Kim Parker, Chuck Forster, Jordana Barclay, 

Andrew McGough, Krissa Caldwell, Chris Hoy, Jim Pfarrer, Carol Leman, Tom Previs, Victoria Demchoc, 

Vianney Hernandez, Todd Nell, Dean Creis, Sue Meier, Pamela Murray, Melissa Leoni, Marcia Fisher, 

Karen Humelbaugh, Shalee Hodgson, Robert Brown, Martin Burrows, Jim Fong, Clay Martin, Tim 

McGann, Tony Frazier. Randy Bauer, Heidi Patterson 

Workforce Policy Cabinet: Dacia Johnson, Erinn Kelley-Siel, Karen Goddin, Gerald Hamilton 

Staff:  Tracy O’Brien 

Absent: Cheryl Roberts, Dave Baker, Frank Wall, Jesse Gomez, Joe Webber, Kate Wilkinson, Marvin 

Revoal, Sen. Larry George, Susan Brown 

             

Meeting called to order at 1:00 p.m. 

Board Chair Pryor opened the meeting and introductions of OWIB members and guests were provided. 

Open Public Comment  
Rachel Post, Public Policy Director from Central City Concern, spoke on behalf of a coalition of 
community based organizations. This coalition applauds the effort in the Executive Order to create 
greater efficiencies and better outcomes within the workforce system, but requests targeted attention 
to special populations, including communities of color, homeless, and those involved with the child 
welfare system, so that these populations are not left behind. Post asked that these voices be included 
in re-chartering conversations to ensure that it is as inclusive as possible. The coalition is excited to 
partner on redesign efforts. 

Allison McIntosh, Deputy Director for Neighborhood Partnerships, expressed support for the redesign 
and re-envisioning of the workforce system. McIntosh encouraged OWIB to take stakeholder 
involvement under advisement, and hopes that this process will coordinate with other alignment 
efforts. 

Victoria Demchoc, Oregon Primary Care Association, represents 31 community health centers. They 
support the principals of rechartering, as workforce development is critical to building healthy 
communities, and encourage the inclusion of local organizations in the process. 

 



 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  2  
 

Consent Agenda 

Ken Madden motioned to approve the consent agenda, Lori Luchak seconded, passed unanimously.  

Implementing the Strategic Plan: System Redesign Update - Recommendations from PFM 

Chair Pryor reminded OWIB that PFM contractors presented at the June, 21, 2013 meeting to discuss 

the scope of work for delivering a report of recommendations to the OWIB for system transformation. 

These recommendations will be reviewed and approved by OWIB, which will then form the basis of 

legislation for 2014 session. Chair Pryor noted that no action was required of the Board today. 

Recommendations are being released at this meeting, followed by extensive stakeholder involvement. 

The stakeholder input will help the Board form its final recommendations, which will be discussed at the 

November 8, 2013 Board meeting. Final refinement of the system recommendations will occur in 

December. 

Agnes Balassa discussed the background of these redesign efforts, beginning with the Governor charging 

OWIB with the creation of a new strategic plan and the passage of House Bill 4141. These changed the 

role of both OWIB and the Local Workforce Investment Boards. Balassa highlighted the “North Star 

document”, which visually represents the vision, goal, paths, and outcomes the Governor has for 

Oregon’s Workforce System. The System Redesign/Structural Alignment path is the focus of PFM’s 

recommendations. Balassa asked that the Board use the desired outcomes on the North Star document 

to filter the recommendations heard during today’s meeting. 

Michael Jordan Chief Operating Officer Director, Department of Administrative Services discussed his 

charge from the Governor to change the frame of reference for state systems. Jordan emphasized that 

the workforce system redesign is happening alongside other system transformations, such as health 

care and education. He noted that the plans to realign workforce system will take several legislative 

sessions to achieve, but it is important there is a plan for the 2014 session. He reiterated that the 

business model is changing for all state agencies, and the priority now is to interact with the individual, 

not just with institutions. He stated that the state systems require vertical integration and require more 

collaboration, and it’s imperative to not just instantly distrust the level above you. Controlling costs and 

reducing friction is critical, as costs and friction reduces services to Oregonians. Jordan asks that 

everyone be collaborative in this process and he will support it. 

Tracey O’Brien reviewed the system transformation principles, along with the initial findings from PFM. 

Findings were categorized into the following: Governance, Workforce System Needs, Roles, 

Data/Accountability, and Equity Impacts.  In response to the findings, Karen Goddin noted the 

importance of the issues related to employers. Gerald Hamilton noted the striking similarities between 

these findings and those from when education went through a similar process. Lisa Nisenfeld stated that 

it is urgent the system be flexible and agile, and this agility is something we must learn as a system. Erinn 

Kelley-Siel noted it is a good time to think about the ways in which we engage with our clients when 

focusing on outcomes and not programs. She also stressed the need to analyze data through the lens of 

various stakeholders, including rural, urban, and special populations.  



 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  3  
 

Rand Bauer and Heidi Patterson with PFM began reviewing their recommendations, which were 

presented in four broad categories that align with the North Star document: 1) Create a shared vision, 

system outcomes, and measures, 2) Define the governance and accountability structure, 3) Integrate 

service delivery, and 4) Enhance support for service delivery. They noted their recommendations came 

as a result of hundreds of conversations, thousands of surveys, and best practice research. 

Create a shared vision, system outcomes, and measure: 

Bauer noted there was work being done in this area around shared measures. The recommendations 

encourage OWIB to take leadership role here. 

Define the governance and accountability structure: 

Patterson stated they frequently heard on site visits that roles and responsibilities within the system 

were not clear. Therefore, their recommendation was the system should utilize the convening role of 

Local Workforce Investment Boards, and they should provide local guidance and allocate resources. She 

noted that, with the implementation of measuring and reporting results regularly (2C), accountability is 

built into the system so that it is more strategic. 

Rep. Dembrow asked if PFM envisioned the system’s ability to determine how much money is spent on 

workforce, linked directly to the results. Bauer responded that is the desired outcome for this 

recommendation. Laura McKinney noted there is often not a clear separation between input and 

outcome, and requested they clarify that definition, as there are often many high level outcomes we do 

not have control over. Balassa stated that outcome measures are critically important for OWIB, but it is 

even more critical that there is transparency of those measures. 

Integrate Service Delivery: 

 PFM’s recommendation is to create one single state workforce agency, with five divisions, that would 

provide strategic direction and performance compacts for the system. This agency should integrate as 

many workforce programs as possible, and streamline funding to be delivered through LWIBs. Bauer 

stated that, ideally, all staff would report to one employer, but acknowledged this may require a federal 

waiver, among other barriers. 

Discussion ensued around recommendation 3G, Evaluate the Designation of Workforce Investment 

Areas, which Rep. Dembrow had asked about earlier in the meeting. Bauer said that the workforce area 

boundaries are not necessarily coherent or cohesive. For this reason, PFM recommends aligning 

boundaries with Regional Solutions. Balassa asked PFM to provide examples of criteria that could be 

used to undertake a boundary re-designation process. PFM agreed to provide such examples. Rep. 

Huffman stated he supported the efficiencies that boundary realignment could bring, but wonders how 

it affected the job seekers and if it would limit their choices. Patterson responded that re-designating 

boundaries does not mean that all offices would change, and that job seekers would have more options. 

Dacia Johnson asked how this would affect access to services for special populations. Patterson stated 

that, if boundaries were to change, it would still be important for each center to maintain core 

competencies that would serve these special populations. 



 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  4  
 

Enhance Support for Service Delivery: 

Kelly-Siel briefly outlined what it currently looks like to a customer when they are utilizing various 

programs within DHS, which uses a “No Wrong Door” approach.  It was noted this is within DHS, not 

across workforce. The approach often reduces friction for customers. Rep. Dembrow indicated this 

method would be especially beneficial applied to data sharing as well. 

Upon discussion of the recommendations around iMatch and NCRC, Jessica Gomez asked if there is 

potential to combine these two systems. Patterson clarified that NCRC determines skills, while iMatch 

endeavors to match skills to jobs, so they are systems with different purposes.  Gomez urged group to 

explore how NCRC can be better integrated into the end result job match system. Employer concerns 

around iMatch were discussed, including that it is cumbersome and time consuming to use and the 

matches do not always provide value to the employers. Nisenfeld stated the importance of first 

evaluating what the private sector already does in terms of job matching, so as not to recreate what 

already exists, then determining where we can add on to it.  

Chair Pryor asked each Board member their thoughts on the recommendations presented. Rep. 

Huffman stated that he supports the many efficiencies the recommendations calls for, and agrees that 

technology should be used more strategically. However, he does not want the system to lose its face to 

face work/personal touch as it undergoes these changes. 

Clair Spanbock affirmed the importance of standardization, especially if center consolidation occurs. 

Laura McKinney is interested in learning more about the specific outcomes of the activities, such as 

fewer touches per client, amount saved, etc., so that success could be measured. Megan Helzerman 

wondered what would be the losses and gains of implementing these changes, and emphasized the 

importance of stakeholder engagement throughout this process. 

Barbara Byrd agreed with the report highlighting the need for more accountability and transparency. 

She indicated she would have liked to see more input from labor and community based organization 

incorporated into the workforce system. 

Rep. Dembrow reiterated the need to focus on special populations, especially the chronically and 

generationally underemployed. He is looking specifically for ways to tie this work to career pathways 

and how we can set job seekers onto a career pathway. 

Barbara Rodriguez wants to ensure there is strong communication with those who use these services. 

Lori Luchak stated it was good to see movement and change after her many years on the board, and 

feels it is most important to focus on service integration, as that will enable the system to move quickly 

with businesses. 

Ken Madden asked that the Board prioritize which changes to implement first, so as not to attempt too 

much at once. He is interested in hearing how this will affect the local workforce investment boards and 

hearing where they see the most challenges. 



 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  5  
 

Maureen Faullt expressed the need to hear from constituents on these changes and what they 

experience when navigating the system. She noted this is a great opportunity to better align the supply 

side and the demand side. 

Dacia Johnson stated her interests lay in special populations, and has some concerns that if resources 

are so spread out, it can be difficult to have specialization of services. This can be problematic for the 

clientele she is directed to serve and wants to ensure they have equal access to the system. 

Jessica Gomez agreed with Madden to prioritize. While she agrees that simplifying can result in better 

quality services, it is important we are strategic where we begin and where we continue our focus. 

Erinn Kelley-Siel hopes OWIB will prioritize the areas which will provide the best results, as well as focus 

on alignment and accountability without watering down any programs. She encourages further 

discussion of how customization can be accomplished. 

Lisa Nisenfeld finds the recommendations to be strong, and encouraged a strong state and local 

collaboration. These changes should not be about turf, but with the acknowledgement we are all in this 

together. Commissioner Unger liked the report and is excited about the changes. 

Karen Goddin encouraged the process to be looked at as a matrix, rather than a linear process.   Gerald 

Hamilton Likes the recommendation for a stronger OWIB and looks forward to further outcome 

explorations. Chair Pryor likes the recommendations, but also complimented those in the system for 

getting where they already are. She emphasized we have a good system, but we will strive to get even 

better. She indicated it was not clear why some of these things are not already part of the system, and it 

will be important to indicate what the barriers are (financial, logistics, policy, etc.). She reiterated the 

need for OWIB to prioritize the recommendations. 

Tracey O’Brien reviewed the next steps in the process, including public comment at the November 8, 

2013 meeting, and voting on final recommendations at the December 6, 2013 meeting. She encouraged 

members to determine what other information they need to accept or reject recommendations. Balassa 

encouraged continued discussion on these, not only in terms of what is needed, but also what is able to 

be accomplished. The Governor believes oversight and accountability at the local level is key; the 

challenge is in the details of implementing this. 

Presentation on Certified Work Ready Communities  

Karen Humelbaugh and Todd Nell provided an overview of what it means to be a Certified Work Ready 

Community (CWRC). The CWRC is a county-level certification, and connects NCRC with other available 

resources in a community. 

Chair Pryor asked questions regarding why NCRC was chosen as the appropriate credential, how long 

the certification lasts, and how the CWRC/NCRC goals were established. Humelbaugh stated NCRC was 

chosen because it is nationally recognized, portable, and demonstrates skills. An implementation 

committee agreed on the goal numbers—100,000 NCRC was considered to be critical mass. The NCRC 



 

 

September 20 2013 OWIB Minutes  6  
 

has no expiration date for individuals, but the standard expectation is the skills certification lasts for five 

years. 

Jessica Gomez asked a question regarding the connection and availability of NCRC to schools. 

Humelbaugh responded that the system is beginning to reach out to youth and school districts. Notably, 

the new Essential Skills Requirement can be met by achieving a Gold NCRC. 

Rodriguez asked if there were statistics available on NCRC effects, such as helping with worker 

retention. Additional results would assist in selling the NCRC, beyond that it is an easy screening tool. 

Humelbaugh noted CCWD is in the process of collecting this from ACT and other states. 

Nisenfeld inquired how the NCRC works for individuals with disabilities or for whom English is a second 

language. Humelbaugh said there is remediation software available, and they are beginning to work 

with DHS to reduce barriers for people with disabilities. Nisenfeld urged the NCRC to be viewed not as a 

way to separate who does well and who doesn’t, but rather get everyone to the level that they will do 

well. 

Gomez asked if there were other criteria to become a CWRC rather that NCRC numbers. Humelbaugh 

noted that other states add additional criteria. The OWIB CWRC Committee can look into adding more, 

such as child care, transportation, etc. Gomez encouraged OWIB to look at adding criteria to the 

certification as a way to differentiate Oregon. 

Rep. Dembrow asked if the NCRC is required for state employment. Nell said they are in discussions with 

DAS on this issue, and are requesting partner agencies require it. 

Meeting adjourned at 4:09 pm. 

 

 


